
 
REVISED AGENDA 

 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

  TUESDAY, AUGUST 20, 2013 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
  

              REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
   

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Approval of the minutes from the August 6, 2013 Regular City Commission Meeting  
 
 

 OLD BUSINESS 
 

2. ORD. NO. 10-13 (2nd Reading) 
An Ordinance to levy Special Assessments to pay for the cost of nuisance abatement assessments  
 

3. ORD. NO. 11-13 (2nd Reading) 
An Ordinance to levy Special Assessments to pay the cost of Demolition Assessments per terms of 
Moving Ohio Forward Grant Agreement 
 
 

 NEW BUSINESS 
 

4. ORD. NO. 12-13 (1st Reading) 
An Emergency Ordinance to make appropriations for the City of Piqua, Ohio for the year 2013 

 
5. ORD. NO. 13-13 (1st Reading) 

An Ordinance amending Section 77.01 -Traffic Schedules Adopted, Schedule III of the Piqua Code 
relating to one-way streets and alleys pertaining to Wood Street 
 

6. RES. NO. R-112-13 
A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to North American Salt Co. for the purchase of road salt 
for the Street Department  

 
7. RES. NO. R-113-13 

A Resolution awarding a contract to L.J. DeWeese Co., for the Fountain Park Bridge Rehab project 
 

8. RES.NO. R-114-13 
A Resolution amending the agreement with the Ohio Department of Transportation for the 
US 36 Beautification project 
 
 
 



 2

 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
OTHER:   Monthly Reports for June 2013 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 

ADJOURNMENT 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday August 6, 2013 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Terry, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. 
 
PROCLAMATION   Protecting Our Water Ways (POWW) – Accepting Jeff Lange 
 
Mayor Fess read and presented the Proclamation to Mr. Lange thanking him and the volunteers 
for all of their hard work on the cleanup. 
 
Mr. Lange gave a brief overview of the work the POWW does and provided statistics stating the 
various objects that have been picked up.  Mr. Lange thanked the city for their help and all of the 
volunteers who come out and help with the cleanup. 
 
PRESENTATION   Brenda Gibson – Miami Conservancy District 
 
Breda Gibson came forward stating this is the 100th year anniversary of the 1913 Flood, and 
provided a brief overview of some of the planned activities to commemorate the event.  Ms. 
Gibson presented each of the Commissioners with a book published by the Miami Conservancy 
District commemorating the 1913 Flood to be displayed in the various city offices. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked Ms. Gibson and the Conservancy District for their continued support, and all 
the work they do.  
 
PRESENTATION  Ryan Burch – City Intern 
 
Ryan Burch, City of Piqua summer intern in the Engineering Department provided a very 
interesting presentation on his work in the Engineering Department.  Ryan was given the task of 
designing and upgrading a new pull station fire alarm for the Ft. Piqua Plaza. 
 
City Engineer Amy Havenar remarked that it is amazing that Ryan is only going to be a Senior in 
high school with all of this knowledge and work ethics, and hopes he comes he plans to come 
back again next year. 
 
Project Manager Bob Graeser stated that Ryan was a very hard worker, and that it was a pleasure 
to work with him.  Mr. Graeser further added he hopes Ryan plans to come back again next year 
also. 
 
Commissioner Wilson asked several questions regarding the pull station fire alarm system, and  
Ryan answered all of the questions in detail. 
 
City Manager Huff commented that Ryan worked very hard on this project, as it was a very difficult 
project to complete.  City Manager Huff congratulated Ryan, further stating he knows he will have 
a very successful career ahead of him, and that he is welcome to come back next year. 
 
Mayor Fess congratulated Ryan on his project, further stating she hopes he plans to come back to 
work for the city when he graduates. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
. 

     Consent Agenda 
     Approval of the minutes from the July 16, 2013 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 
      
     Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to approve the Consent  
     Agenda.  Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Fess, Martin, Wilson, and Terry.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
     unanimously.   
 

New Business 
 

    ORD. NO. 10-13 (1st Reading) 
An Ordinance to levy Special Assessments to pay for the cost of nuisance abatement assessments 
 
Amy Welker, Health & Sanitation Director provided a brief overview on the assessments.  The City 
of Piqua abates nuisance conditions on properties including mowing of high grass, removing trash, 
trimming trees, and demolishing structures according to city code.  The cost of the abatement is 
then charged back to the property owner. If the property owner fails to pay the abatement fees then 
the costs are certified to the Miami County Auditor to be placed on the property taxes.  The Auditor 
accepts assessments once per year, and this year the assessments are due by September 9, 2013. 
 

    Questions were raised on the fees of the billing tier, who is responsible for the fees if the property 
    is abandoned, how the property owners are notified, and how long they are given to take care of the  
    nuisance before the city steps in?  There were several very large fees on the report and Ms. Welker 
    explained how the fees were accessed. 
 
    City Manager Huff stated the city is currently working with a company that is working with the banks  
    and businesses to help with the nuisance abatements. 
 
     Law Director Stacy Wall provided some background information regarding the responsibility of the  
     property owner, and if the property is purchase how the fees are collected. 
 
    Amy Welker, Health & Sanitation Director stated the height limitation for grass is 8”, if it becomes 
    higher the City will have the property mowed and assess the fees to the property owner.  There was 
    also discussion on the length of time between the notice and cutting the grass, and how the  
    property owners are notified. 
 

Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 10-13. 
 
Ordinance No. 10-13 was given a first reading. 

 
    ORD. NO. 11-13 (1st Reading) 

An Ordinance to levy Special Assessments to pay the cost of Demolition Assessments per terms of 
the Moving Ohio Forward Grant Agreement 
 
Bill Lutz, Development Program Manager, stated in 2012 the City of Piqua entered into an 
agreement (Moving Ohio Forward) with the Miami County Board of Commissioners for the 
demolition of residential structures in the City of Piqua.  The terms of this agreement were that the 
City would demolish up to ten houses and assess one-half of the demolition costs to the property 
owner.  To date, under the program, six properties have been demolished, two are under contract to 
be completed by August 30, and two more are currently being studied for asbestos contamination. 
 
There was discussion regarding what the next step is for the empty lots after the homes have been 
taken down, and would the property owners be able to sell the lots? 



 3

 
Mr. Lutz provided information regarding the use of the lots after demolition. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 11-13. 
 
Ordinance No. 11-13 was given a first reading. 
 

    RES. NO. R- 111-13  
    A Resolution establishing “Trick or Treat/beggar’s Night” in the City of Piqua 
 
    City Manager Huff stated the annual celebration of Halloween is a tradition in the City of Piqua, and 
    this year it will be held on Thursday, October 31, 2013 from 6:00 to 8:00 P.M. 

 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-111-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-111-13 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-111-13 adopted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one came forward to speak at this time. 

    
City Manager’s Report 
 

     City Manager Huff stated on Monday August 5, a meeting was held at the Piqua National Guard 
     Armory regarding the Historic East Piqua Redevelopment program.  There was a good turn out to  
     hear the proposed preliminary plans and concepts, and to receive suggestions and  
     recommendations from the residents in the proposed area.  This will be a long term project and the 
     city is trying to find the best use of the Historic East Piqua area. 
 
      City Manager Huff announced on Thursday, August 8th several of the city officials and department  
      heads will be accepting the Healthy Employee Award, and also on Thursday the new branding  
      information for the City will be presented. 
 
      City Manager Huff announced the US RT 36 Beautification Project has started as they are in the 
      process of removing the old fence along Rt 36 corridor.  
 
      City Manager Huff announced there are several openings on City Boards and Committees. 
      Applications can be obtained on the city web site, or in the City Manager’s office. 
 
      Commissioners Comment 
 

  Commissioner Vogt provided information regarding the City Car Show on July 20th, stating the bad  
  weather kept the attendance down, but the Van Dells provided a great performance.  
  
  Commissioner Vogt thanked all of the volunteers who helped him with the car show, Jim Cruse, 
  several of the Government Academy class members, and administration staff members, Diane  
  Tamplin, Debbie Stein, and Becky Cool for all of their hard work and support.. 
 
   Commissioner Vogt reminded citizens walking their dogs in the City Parks to please remember to  
   pick up after them.  This is something we may have to look at in adding legislation in the future,  
  stated Commissioner Vogt. 
 



 4

 
 
Commissioner Terry congratulated Jeff Lange and Ryan Burch on their projects. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated she received a telephone call concerning open burning in residential 
areas and asked if information could be provided for residents.  City Manager Huff stated there 
would be information on the next City Commission meeting regarding the open burning policy for 
the city. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated he also received the same telephone call, further stating information is 
available at the Fire Department.   
 
Commissioner Wilson thanked the volunteers who helped with all of the activities in the city 
recently. 
 
Commissioner Wilson reminded citizens of the next Bike Mob scheduled for August 10th at 10:30 
A.M. meeting at Lock Nine Park.  In addition to the Bike Mob, a Walking Tour of the Historic East 
Piqua area will begin at 10:30 at Lock Nine Park with a $5.00 fee being collected for the tour. 
 
Mayor Fess congratulated Commissioner Vogt for his work on the Car Show, and thanked all of the 
volunteers who helped.  The Van Dells provided an excellent concert.  Mayor Fess also reminded 
citizens of the Farmers Market on Thursday August 8th, 2013. 

  
  Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular  

     Piqua City Commission Meeting at 8:25 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Martin,  Fess, Wilson, and  
     Vogt. Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 

                 
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   
PASSED: ______________________   
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
         REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  10-13 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS  
TO PAY FOR THE COST OF NUISANCE ABATEMENT 
ASSESSMENT  

 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 
the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The assessment of the cost and expense of improving a certain 
lot, as herein set out, by nuisance abatement on said property, as reported to this 
Commission in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, are hereby adopted and confirmed, and 
that there be and is hereby levied and assessed upon the lot improved by the 
aforementioned nuisance abatement, the amount reported as aforesaid which 
assessment, together with the description of said lot is now on file in the offices of the 
Clerk of this Commission, the Director of Health, and the Director of Finance and is not 
in excess of the special benefits to said property, and is not in excess of a statutory 
limitation. 
 

SEC. 2: The total assessment against said lot shall be payable in cash or 
at the option of the owner, in two equal semiannual installments.  All cash payments of 
assessments and installments shall be made to the Director of Health.  All 
assessments and installments thereof remaining unpaid shall be certified by the Clerk 
of this Commission to the County Auditor, as provided by law, to be by him placed on 
the tax duplicate and collected as other taxes are collected.  Said assessment shall 
include the cost of publishing and serving of any and all notices, ordinances and 
resolutions required. 

 
SEC. 3: This Ordinance is required to be effective immediately in order to 

submit assessment to the County Auditor’s office by September 9, 2013; wherefore; 
this ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon it’s passage. 
 
1st Reading 8-6-2013 
       ____________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 2
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
August 6, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
An Ordinance to Levy Special Assessments to Pay for the Cost of Nuisance 
Abatement Assessment 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  Amy Welker, Director of Health & Sanitation 
Department:  Health 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
The city abates nuisance conditions on properties including mowing high grass, 
removing trash, trimming trees, and demolishing structures according to city 
code.  The cost of the abatement is charged back to the property owner.  If the 
property owner fails to pay the abatement cost then the costs are certified to the 
county auditor to be placed on the property taxes.  The auditor accepts these 
assessments once per year.  This year the assessments are due to the auditor by 
September 9, 2013. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:   
Expenditure $:   
Source of Funds: Reimbursement of $35,597.44 
Narrative:  This ordinance will allow for the collection of $35,597.44 

which includes the cost to the city to hire contractors to 
complete the abatements and also administrative costs. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Pass the ordinance to assess the abatement costs. 
2. Do not pass the ordinance. 
3. Provide further direction to staff. 
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

First reading at the 8-6-13 meeting.   
Second reading at the 8-20-13 meeting. 
Third reading at the 9-3-13 meeting..  
Assessments sent to county auditor 9-9-13 (if passed)  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Pass the ordinance to assess the abatement costs. 

ATTACHMENTS  Exhibit A 

 



20
13

 N
U

IS
AN

CE
 A

BA
TE

M
EN

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
U

PD
AT

ED
 E

XH
IB

IT
 "A

"
AU

GU
ST

 2
0,

 2
01

3

O
w

ne
r

In
vo

ic
e 

#
Lo

ca
tio

n
Pa

rc
el

 ID
Ty

pe
  T

ot
al

 
Am

ou
nt

  
 D

ue
 D

ec
 

20
13

 
 D

ue
 Ju

ne
 

20
14

 
Ja

ck
so

n 
Re

nt
al

 P
ro

p
08

1-
13

61
4

Bo
al

 A
ve

nu
e

N
44

-0
29

51
0

Gr
as

s
$ 

   
   

11
5.

00
 

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Ki
nd

el
l M

ar
y

93
7

61
0

BO
O

N
E 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

11
11

0
Gr

as
s

87
.5

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
3.

75
 

$ 
   

   
   

43
.7

5 
Su

e 
W

he
at

on
03

8-
13

72
6

BO
O

N
E 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

18
12

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Su
e 

W
he

at
on

08
8-

13
72

6
BO

O
N

E 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
18

12
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

Su
e 

W
he

at
on

12
1-

13
72

6
BO

O
N

E 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
18

12
0

Gr
as

s
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  9
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

90
.0

0 
Jo

yc
e 

Jo
ne

s
10

7-
13

21
0

Br
en

tw
oo

d 
Av

en
ue

N
44

-0
61

02
0

Gr
as

s
13

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  6
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

67
.5

0 
M

ic
ha

el
 B

ar
ho

rs
t 

02
3-

13
52

3
BR

IC
E 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
29

60
0

Gr
as

s
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  9
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

90
.0

0 
M

ic
ha

el
 B

ar
ho

rs
t 

07
9-

13
52

3
BR

IC
E 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
29

60
0

Gr
as

s
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

30
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 3

00
.0

0 
Sw

ar
ts

 T
ar

a
65

7
16

6
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
48

97
0

Gr
as

s
13

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  6
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

67
.5

0 
Ja

m
es

 B
ot

ts
05

1-
13

31
9

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

08
59

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

He
m

m
 K

en
ne

th
 J

93
5

51
3

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

08
73

0
Gr

as
s

80
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

40
.0

0 
Ho

pe
 C

ha
pe

l
04

4-
13

62
4

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

05
66

3
Gr

as
s

62
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
31

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 3
10

.0
0 

Ho
pe

 C
ha

pe
l

00
8-

13
62

4
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
05

66
3

Gr
as

s
56

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

28
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

80
.0

0 
Ho

pe
 C

ha
pe

l
74

0
62

4
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-2
50

45
0

Gr
as

s
53

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
 2

67
.5

0 
Ho

pe
 C

ha
pe

l
92

2
62

4
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-2
50

45
0

Gr
as

s
55

2.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
6.

25
 

$ 
   

   
 2

76
.2

5 
W

in
sle

r R
ob

er
t J

82
5

81
9

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

05
44

0
Gr

as
s

15
7.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

8.
75

 
$ 

   
   

   
78

.7
5 

Ba
sy

e 
Ro

be
rt

 L
76

7
82

3
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
05

42
0

Gr
as

s
15

2.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
6.

25
 

$ 
   

   
   

76
.2

5 
Ro

be
rt

 B
as

ye
04

5-
13

82
3

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

05
42

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Ro
be

rt
 L

 B
as

ye
 

00
9-

13
82

3
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
05

42
0

Gr
as

s
14

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

70
.0

0 
Ro

be
rt

 L
 B

as
ye

 
09

0-
13

82
3

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

05
42

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Je
ffr

ey
 S

 Y
ou

ng
 

00
6-

13
10

11
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
05

93
0

Gr
as

s
PA

ID
Be

ai
r D

el
or

es
10

41
12

30
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
33

72
0

Tr
as

h
11

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  5
5.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

55
.0

0 
De

lo
re

s B
ea

ir
03

5-
13

12
30

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

33
72

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Ca

th
er

in
e 

M
ac

Ke
lla

r
08

9-
13

15
05

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

97
90

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Ke
nn

et
h 

F 
&

 C
at

hr
yn

 A
 S

ta
m

ba
u g

00
7-

13
16

06
BR

O
AD

W
AY

N
44

-0
49

02
0

Gr
as

s
85

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
42

.5
0 

Ke
nn

et
h 

St
am

ba
ug

h
07

0-
13

16
06

BR
O

AD
W

AY
N

44
-0

49
02

0
Gr

as
s

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

Ba
ym

an
 A

nt
ho

ny
 M

10
23

14
08

Br
oo

k 
St

N
44

-0
39

00
0

Tr
as

h
65

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
32

.5
0 

Co
rd

le
 Ja

m
es

 E
69

8
90

6
Ca

m
p 

St
N

44
-0

52
09

0
Gr

as
s

17
4.

76
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  8

7.
38

 
$ 

   
   

   
87

.3
8 

Ke
ok

a 
Ba

rn
es

 A
nt

ho
ny

 
01

1-
13

81
5

CL
AR

K 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

40
63

0
Gr

as
s

13
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  6

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
67

.5
0 

Ke
ok

a 
Ba

rn
es

 A
nt

ho
ny

 
09

6-
13

81
5

CL
AR

K 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

40
63

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
De

br
a 

Ri
tc

hi
e

11
0-

13
10

13
CL

AR
K 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
36

15
0

Gr
as

s
17

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  8
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

87
.5

0 



20
13

 N
U

IS
AN

CE
 A

BA
TE

M
EN

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
U

PD
AT

ED
 E

XH
IB

IT
 "A

"
AU

GU
ST

 2
0,

 2
01

3

O
w

ne
r

In
vo

ic
e 

#
Lo

ca
tio

n
Pa

rc
el

 ID
Ty

pe
  T

ot
al

 
Am

ou
nt

  
 D

ue
 D

ec
 

20
13

 
 D

ue
 Ju

ne
 

20
14

 
Ch

ar
le

s D
od

d
80

8
31

8
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
18

0
Gr

as
s

65
7.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
32

8.
75

 
$ 

   
   

 3
28

.7
5 

Ch
ar

le
s D

od
d

02
0-

13
31

8
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
18

0
Gr

as
s

16
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  8

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
80

.0
0 

Ch
ar

le
s D

od
d

05
8-

13
31

8
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
18

0
Gr

as
s

58
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
29

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
90

.0
0 

Ch
ar

le
s D

od
d

11
5-

13
31

8
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
18

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

O
H 

SE
VE

N
 L

LC
05

7-
13

41
0

CL
EV

EL
AN

D 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
43

22
0

Gr
as

s
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  9
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

90
.0

0 
O

H 
Se

ve
n 

LL
C

01
9-

13
41

0
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
22

0
Gr

as
s

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

37
.5

0 
O

H 
Se

ve
n 

LL
C

10
8-

13
41

0
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
22

0
Gr

as
s

18
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  9

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
90

.0
0 

Ch
ar

lo
tt

e 
Pe

tt
y

05
0-

13
62

4
CO

TT
AG

E 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

28
97

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Ca
rn

es
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 IV

 L
LC

07
8-

13
70

2
CO

TT
AG

E 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

29
07

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Ca

rn
es

 M
ar

k
90

4
10

11
Co

vi
ng

to
n 

Av
e

N
44

-0
29

98
0

Gr
as

s
14

1.
26

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
0.

63
 

$ 
   

   
   

70
.6

3 
M

ar
y 

Di
pa

do
va

04
2-

13
12

30
CO

VI
N

GT
O

N
 A

VE
N

44
-0

78
64

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Je
nn

ife
r R

ue
03

6-
13

14
17

CO
VI

N
GT

O
N

 A
VE

N
44

-0
73

42
6

Gr
as

s
PA

ID
Fe

de
ra

l H
om

e 
Lo

an
 M

or
tg

ag
e

77
0

21
1

E 
Gr

ee
ne

 S
t

N
44

-0
00

29
0

Gr
as

s
14

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

70
.0

0 
Cl

em
en

t J
oy

ce
 A

75
9

41
5

E 
Gr

ee
ne

 S
t

N
44

-0
09

71
0

Gr
as

s
16

8.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  8
4.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

84
.0

0 
Ro

se
 T

ra
ce

y
09

4-
13

30
9

E.
 G

re
en

e 
St

.
N

44
-0

16
73

0
Gr

as
s

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

37
.5

0 
Ci

nd
y 

Be
nn

et
t L

oc
ke

r
10

3-
13

43
4

E.
 G

re
en

e 
St

.
N

44
-0

51
15

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Bu

ck
ey

e 
Pr

op
er

tie
s

11
8-

13
20

3-
20

5
E.

 N
or

th
 S

t.
N

44
-0

02
79

0
Gr

as
s

65
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
2.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

32
.5

0 
Sa

nd
ra

 G
er

lin
g 

Po
lse

lli
 T

ru
st

ee
03

1-
13

EC
HO

 L
AK

E 
DR

IV
E

N
44

-0
55

88
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

W
ill

ia
m

s F
re

d
72

2
14

11
Ed

ge
 S

t
N

44
-0

35
48

0
Gr

as
s

58
.1

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  2
9.

05
 

$ 
   

   
   

29
.0

5 
Fr

ed
 C

 W
ill

ia
m

s 
00

1-
13

14
11

ED
GE

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
35

48
0

Gr
as

s
54

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

70
.0

0 
At

ki
ns

 M
ar

y 
C

64
2

35
8

El
le

rm
an

N
44

-0
31

32
0

Gr
as

s
52

3.
10

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
1.

55
 

$ 
   

   
 2

61
.5

5 
M

ar
y 

At
ki

ns
05

3-
13

35
8

EL
LE

RM
AN

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
31

32
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

M
cL

ai
n 

Da
vi

d
89

2
15

18
Fa

irf
ax

 A
ve

N
44

-0
72

65
7

Gr
as

s
PA

ID
Co

ur
tla

nd
 G

 E
ge

rt
on

 
04

7-
13

91
0

FA
LM

O
U

TH
 A

VE
N

U
E

N
44

-0
70

69
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

Am
y 

J L
au

gh
m

an
 

03
7-

13
91

1
FA

LM
O

U
TH

 A
VE

N
U

E
N

44
-0

70
82

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Ti
m

ot
hy

 G
oo

d
01

8-
13

20
4

FO
U

RT
H 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
76

0
Gr

as
s

10
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
52

.5
0 

Ti
m

ot
hy

 G
oo

d
07

2-
13

20
4

FO
U

RT
H 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
76

0
Gr

as
s

16
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  8

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
80

.0
0 

Ti
m

ot
hy

 G
oo

d
11

7-
13

20
4

FO
U

RT
H 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
76

0
Gr

as
s

27
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
13

5.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 1
35

.0
0 

W
ac

kl
er

 Ja
so

n 
D

74
9

20
5

FO
U

RT
H 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

43
90

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Ja
rr

od
 H

ue
lsk

am
p

02
6-

13
32

3
GA

RN
SE

Y 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
28

21
0

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

PA
ID

PN
C 

Ba
nk

08
5-

13
41

1
GL

EN
W

O
O

D 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

61
54

0
Gr

as
s

65
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
2.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

32
.5

0 



20
13

 N
U

IS
AN

CE
 A

BA
TE

M
EN

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
U

PD
AT

ED
 E

XH
IB

IT
 "A

"
AU

GU
ST

 2
0,

 2
01

3

O
w

ne
r

In
vo

ic
e 

#
Lo

ca
tio

n
Pa

rc
el

 ID
Ty

pe
  T

ot
al

 
Am

ou
nt

  
 D

ue
 D

ec
 

20
13

 
 D

ue
 Ju

ne
 

20
14

 
Ra

ym
on

d 
Br

ew
er

02
1-

13
41

5
GL

EN
W

O
O

D 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

61
56

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Ra

ym
on

d 
Br

ew
er

08
0-

13
41

5
GL

EN
W

O
O

D 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

61
56

0
Gr

as
s

19
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  9

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
97

.5
0 

Do
ug

la
s L

ie
tt

e
08

2-
13

42
3

GL
EN

W
O

O
D 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
61

60
0

Gr
as

s
65

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
32

.5
0 

An
ge

la
 M

ay
er

07
7-

13
30

9
Go

rd
on

 S
t

N
44

-0
14

09
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

M
ay

er
 A

ng
el

a
79

0
30

9
Go

rd
on

 S
t

N
44

-0
14

09
0

Gr
as

s
15

4.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
7.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

77
.0

0 
Ga

ry
 D

itm
er

72
3

50
7

GR
AY

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
35

46
0

Gr
as

s
52

3.
10

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
1.

55
 

$ 
   

   
 2

61
.5

5 
Ga

ry
 D

itm
er

91
8

50
7

GR
AY

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
35

46
0

Gr
as

s
54

3.
76

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
1.

88
 

$ 
   

   
 2

71
.8

8 
Ga

ry
 D

itm
er

01
4-

13
50

7
GR

AY
 S

TR
EE

T
N

44
-0

35
46

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Ga
ry

 D
itm

er
11

4-
13

50
7

GR
AY

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
35

46
0

Gr
as

s
54

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

70
.0

0 
M

ar
y 

 E
lk

in
06

0-
13

51
1

HA
RN

EY
 D

RI
VE

N
44

-0
63

63
0

Gr
as

s
95

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
47

.5
0 

F 
O

 E
 P

iq
ua

 A
er

ie
 #

61
4 

In
c

07
3-

13
30

1
KI

EN
LE

 D
RI

VE
N

44
-0

74
75

5
Gr

as
s

15
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
77

.5
0 

M
ar

tin
 F

or
es

t M
72

7
70

6
Le

on
ar

d 
St

N
44

-0
32

03
0

Gr
as

s
53

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
 2

67
.5

0 
M

ar
tin

 F
or

es
t M

87
9

70
6

Le
on

ar
d 

St
N

44
-0

32
03

0
Gr

as
s

53
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
26

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

 2
67

.5
0 

M
ar

tin
 F

or
es

t M
09

8-
13

70
6

Le
on

ar
d 

St
N

44
-0

32
03

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Fo
re

st
 M

ar
tin

04
8-

13
70

6
LE

O
N

AR
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

32
03

0
Gr

as
s

53
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
26

5.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
65

.0
0 

Fo
re

st
 M

ar
tin

00
2-

13
70

6
LE

O
N

AR
D 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

32
03

0
Gr

as
s

53
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
26

5.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
65

.0
0 

Do
nn

a 
M

ish
ni

ck
05

2-
13

71
2

LE
O

N
AR

D 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
32

00
0

Gr
as

s
82

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

1.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
41

.0
0 

Gr
ill

io
t D

an
ie

l J
10

25
51

0
Li

nc
ol

n 
St

N
44

-0
22

61
0

Tr
as

h
60

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
30

.0
0 

Bu
rn

s R
ob

er
t

77
5

91
9

M
ad

iso
n 

Av
e

N
44

-0
25

69
0

Gr
as

s
55

2.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
6.

25
 

$ 
   

   
 2

76
.2

5 
M

on
be

ck
 E

dw
ar

d 
L

69
4

13
08

M
ad

iso
n 

Av
e

N
44

-0
27

13
0

Tr
as

h
10

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  5
2.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

52
.5

0 
Ro

be
rt

 C
 B

ur
ns

01
5-

13
91

9
M

AD
IS

O
N

 A
VE

N
U

E
N

44
-0

25
69

0
Gr

as
s

18
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  9

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
90

.0
0 

Ra
lp

h 
Bl

ue
03

0-
13

22
8

M
AN

N
IN

G 
ST

RE
E T

N
44

 0
35

74
0

Gr
as

s
95

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
47

.5
0 

Ra
lp

h 
E 

Bl
ue

07
5-

13
22

8
M

AN
N

IN
G 

ST
RE

E T
N

44
-0

35
74

0
Gr

as
s

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

Ra
lp

h 
E 

Bl
ue

10
1-

13
22

8
M

AN
N

IN
G 

ST
RE

E T
N

44
-0

35
74

0
Gr

as
s

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

Te
rr

ac
e 

Cr
ee

k 
Ap

ar
tm

en
ts

 L
LC

06
9-

13
90

M
AR

YV
IL

LE
 L

AN
E 

 
N

44
-0

93
76

0
Gr

as
s

PA
ID

M
ar

y 
Lo

u 
Ki

nd
el

l
04

3-
13

42
7

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

33
62

0
Gr

as
s

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

M
ar

y 
Lo

u 
Ki

nd
el

l
09

9-
13

42
7

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

33
62

0
Gr

as
s

55
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

5.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
75

.0
0 

Ki
nd

el
l M

ar
y

92
5

42
7

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

33
62

0
Gr

as
s

53
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
26

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

 2
67

.5
0 

Hu
be

r K
en

ne
th

 E
65

4
50

0
M

CK
IN

LE
Y 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
35

32
0

Gr
as

s
53

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
 2

67
.5

0 
Ke

nn
et

h 
E 

Hu
be

r
06

6-
13

50
0

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

35
32

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Ke
nn

et
h 

Hu
be

r, 
Jr

.
00

5-
13

50
0

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

35
32

0
Gr

as
s

16
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  8

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
80

.0
0 



20
13

 N
U

IS
AN

CE
 A

BA
TE

M
EN

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
U

PD
AT

ED
 E

XH
IB

IT
 "A

"
AU

GU
ST

 2
0,

 2
01

3

O
w

ne
r

In
vo

ic
e 

#
Lo

ca
tio

n
Pa

rc
el

 ID
Ty

pe
  T

ot
al

 
Am

ou
nt

  
 D

ue
 D

ec
 

20
13

 
 D

ue
 Ju

ne
 

20
14

 
Ke

nn
et

h 
Hu

be
r, 

Jr
.

10
5-

13
50

0
M

CK
IN

LE
Y 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
35

32
0

Gr
as

s
55

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
5.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

75
.0

0 
Ro

ge
r S

ul
liv

an
03

3-
13

52
1

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

33
55

0
Gr

as
s

13
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  6

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
67

.5
0 

Ja
ne

 C
ot

re
ll

08
4-

13
53

4
M

CK
IN

LE
Y 

AV
EN

U
E

N
44

-0
35

53
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

Cr
ow

el
l D

el
m

ar
 L

77
1

70
7

M
CK

IN
LE

Y 
AV

EN
U

E
N

44
-0

38
45

0
Gr

as
s

15
2.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

6.
25

 
$ 

   
   

   
76

.2
5 

Hi
ck

s J
ac

ko
lin

e
64

5
62

5
M

IA
M

I S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
31

09
0

Gr
as

s
15

2.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
6.

25
 

$ 
   

   
   

76
.2

5 
Le

e 
Co

un
ty

 In
ve

st
m

en
t G

ro
up

 L
L C

02
7-

13
62

5
M

IA
M

I S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
31

09
0

Gr
as

s
21

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

10
5.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 1

05
.0

0 
Le

e 
Co

un
ty

 In
ve

st
m

en
t G

ro
up

 L
L C

09
1-

13
62

5
M

IA
M

I S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
31

09
0

Gr
as

s
54

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

70
.0

0 
Br

um
ba

ug
h 

Ba
rb

ar
a 

L
90

9
N

 C
o 

Rd
 2

5A
N

44
-0

78
44

6
Gr

as
s

26
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
13

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 1
30

.0
0 

He
nr

ic
e 

Ed
el

yn
e

67
9

65
0

N
 D

ow
ni

ng
 S

t
N

44
-0

04
18

0
Gr

as
s

12
2.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  6

1.
25

 
$ 

   
   

   
61

.2
5 

Fi
ft

h 
Th

ird
 M

or
tg

ag
e

02
8-

13
20

0
Ra

ce
 S

tr
ee

t
N

44
-0

17
00

0
Gr

as
s

55
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  2
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

27
.5

0 
Fi

ft
h 

Th
ird

 M
or

tg
ag

e
10

2-
13

20
0

Ra
ce

 S
tr

ee
t

N
44

-0
17

00
0

Gr
as

s
55

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  2

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
27

.5
0 

O
ld

s J
oh

n 
S

82
8

12
08

Re
ck

er
 R

d
N

44
-0

72
86

8
Gr

as
s

17
6.

25
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  8

8.
13

 
$ 

   
   

   
88

.1
3 

M
ic

ha
el

 B
og

gs
02

5-
13

20
8

RE
N

CH
E 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

72
97

8
Gr

as
s

22
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
11

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 1
10

.0
0 

M
ic

ha
el

 B
og

gs
09

7-
13

20
8

RE
N

CH
E 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

72
97

8
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Ro
na

ld
 A

nt
ho

ny
09

3-
13

11
7

Ri
ve

rs
id

e 
Dr

N
44

-0
03

53
0

Gr
as

s
37

4.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

18
7.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 1

87
.0

0 
Cu

rt
ne

r A
la

n 
K

75
4

51
0

Ri
ve

rs
id

e 
Dr

N
44

-0
18

48
0

Gr
as

s
87

.5
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

3.
75

 
$ 

   
   

   
43

.7
5 

Do
ug

la
s H

ar
sh

ba
rg

er
05

9-
13

52
4

RI
VE

RS
ID

E 
DR

IV
E

N
44

-0
39

52
0

Gr
as

s
11

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  5
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

57
.5

0 
Do

ug
la

s H
ar

sh
ba

rg
er

11
1-

13
52

4
RI

VE
RS

ID
E 

DR
IV

E
N

44
-0

39
52

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Fl

au
gh

er
 S

ha
ro

n 
E

79
6

52
9

S 
Do

w
ni

ng
 S

t
N

44
-0

07
49

0
Gr

as
s

15
2.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

6.
25

 
$ 

   
   

   
76

.2
5 

Lo
is 

&
 G

eo
rg

e 
Em

er
so

n
05

6-
13

70
1

S 
DO

W
N

IN
G 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

13
06

0
Gr

as
s

18
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  9

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
90

.0
0 

Lo
is 

&
 G

eo
rg

e 
Em

er
so

n
01

2-
13

70
1

S 
DO

W
N

IN
G 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

13
06

0
Gr

as
s

16
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  8

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
80

.0
0 

Lo
is 

&
 G

eo
rg

e 
Em

er
so

n
10

4-
13

70
1

S 
DO

W
N

IN
G 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

13
06

0
Gr

as
s

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

Ha
tt

ie
 M

 H
el

to
n

01
0-

13
42

8
S 

M
AI

N
N

44
-0

04
74

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

He
lto

n 
Ha

tt
ie

 M
68

0
42

8
S 

M
ai

n 
St

N
44

-0
04

74
0

Gr
as

s
15

2.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
6.

25
 

$ 
   

   
   

76
.2

5 
He

lto
n 

Ha
tt

ie
 M

85
0

42
8

S 
M

ai
n 

St
N

44
-0

04
74

0
Gr

as
s

21
0.

25
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
10

5.
13

 
$ 

   
   

 1
05

.1
3 

Sm
ith

 A
sh

to
n

74
8

53
5

S 
M

ai
n 

St
N

44
-0

16
45

0
Gr

as
s

15
2.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

6.
25

 
$ 

   
   

   
76

.2
5 

As
ht

on
 P

 S
m

ith
07

1-
13

53
5

S 
M

AI
N

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
16

45
0

Gr
as

s
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  9
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

90
.0

0 
Ca

rn
es

 M
ar

k
78

2
30

3
S 

Ro
os

ev
el

t A
ve

N
44

-0
13

20
0

Gr
as

s
70

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

5.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
35

.0
0 

Pe
nr

od
 F

ou
r S

ea
so

ns
 L

LC
06

7-
13

12
14

S 
Ro

os
ev

el
t A

ve
N

44
-0

71
18

0
Gr

as
s

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

37
.5

0 
Fe

de
ra

l N
at

io
na

l M
or

tg
ag

e
00

3-
13

10
00

S 
RO

O
SE

VE
LT

 A
VE

N
U

E
N

44
-0

41
42

0
Gr

as
s

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

Li
tt

le
 T

om
m

y 
G

81
0

12
10

S 
Ro

os
ev

el
t S

t
N

44
-0

71
16

0
Gr

as
s

53
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
26

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

 2
67

.5
0 



20
13

 N
U

IS
AN

CE
 A

BA
TE

M
EN

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
U

PD
AT

ED
 E

XH
IB

IT
 "A

"
AU

GU
ST

 2
0,

 2
01

3

O
w

ne
r

In
vo

ic
e 

#
Lo

ca
tio

n
Pa

rc
el

 ID
Ty

pe
  T

ot
al

 
Am

ou
nt

  
 D

ue
 D

ec
 

20
13

 
 D

ue
 Ju

ne
 

20
14

 
W

oo
ds

 E
dg

e 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t
04

9-
13

63
7

S 
W

AY
N

E 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
12

72
0

Gr
as

s
PA

ID
Fr

an
k 

Pu
lfe

r
08

6-
13

20
7

S.
 W

ay
ne

 S
tr

ee
t

N
44

-0
03

95
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

Ro
sa

lia
 K

ru
se

10
9-

13
31

8
S.

 W
ay

ne
 S

tr
ee

t
N

44
-0

04
37

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
An

ge
la

 K
 Y

ou
ng

01
3-

13
34

2
SO

U
TH

N
44

-0
20

00
0

Gr
as

s
16

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  8
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

80
.0

0 
An

ge
la

 Y
ou

ng
05

4-
13

34
2

SO
U

TH
N

44
-0

20
00

0
Gr

as
s

56
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
28

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
80

.0
0 

An
ge

la
 Y

ou
ng

09
2-

13
34

2
SO

U
TH

N
44

-0
20

00
0

Gr
as

s
56

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

28
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

80
.0

0 
Ca

rn
es

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 IV
 L

LC
06

5-
13

81
3

SO
U

TH
N

44
-0

28
74

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Fr

ed
er

ic
k 

&
 L

in
da

 G
al

br
ea

th
 

01
7-

13
81

7
SO

U
TH

N
44

-0
28

75
0

Gr
as

s
10

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  5
2.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

52
.5

0 
Fr

ed
ric

k 
R 

Ga
lb

re
at

h
06

4-
13

81
7

SO
U

TH
N

44
-0

28
75

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Fr

ed
er

ic
k 

L 
Ha

ll
00

4-
13

13
12

SO
U

TH
N

44
-0

33
50

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Fr
ed

er
ic

k 
L 

Ha
ll

06
3-

13
13

12
SO

U
TH

N
44

-0
33

50
0

Gr
as

s
54

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

70
.0

0 
Fr

ed
er

ic
k 

L 
Ha

ll
11

3-
13

13
12

SO
U

TH
N

44
-0

33
50

0
Gr

as
s

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
27

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

 2
70

.0
0 

Yo
un

g 
An

ge
la

 K
66

9
34

2
So

ut
h 

St
N

44
-0

20
00

0
Gr

as
s

15
2.

50
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

6.
25

 
$ 

   
   

   
76

.2
5 

Ha
ll 

Fr
ed

85
3

13
12

So
ut

h 
St

N
44

-0
33

50
0

Gr
as

s
63

6.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

31
8.

25
 

$ 
   

   
 3

18
.2

5 
Da

le
 R

 T
id

er
in

gt
on

03
4-

13
81

5
VI

N
E 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

27
23

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Pa

yn
e 

N
ic

ol
e 

R
72

4
31

7
Vi

rg
in

ia
 S

t
N

44
-0

19
15

7
Gr

as
s

70
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
5.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

35
.0

0 
Pa

yn
e 

N
ic

ol
e 

R
09

5-
13

31
7

Vi
rg

in
ia

 S
t

N
44

-0
19

15
7

Gr
as

s
13

7.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  6
8.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

68
.5

0 
N

ic
ol

e 
Pa

yn
e

02
4-

13
31

7
VI

RG
IN

IA
 S

TR
EE

T
N

44
-0

19
15

7
Gr

as
s

65
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
2.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

32
.5

0 
Br

ad
le

y 
U

lb
ric

h
11

9-
13

52
1-

52
3

W
. H

IG
H 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

19
45

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 
Ti

pp
 C

ity
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s L
LC

03
9-

13
17

15
W

 H
IG

H 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-1
00

30
0

Gr
as

s
33

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

16
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
 1

67
.5

0 
Go

be
r N

at
ha

n 
R

83
9

52
9

W
 W

at
er

 S
t

N
44

-0
08

73
5

Gr
as

s
53

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
 2

67
.5

0 
Ba

nk
 o

f A
m

er
ic

a 
N

A
11

6-
13

71
5

W
 W

at
er

 S
t.

N
44

-0
20

37
0

Gr
as

s
26

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

13
2.

50
 

$ 
   

   
 1

32
.5

0 
Fr

ee
 A

le
x 

L
80

5
11

26
W

 W
at

er
 S

t
N

44
-0

21
17

0
Gr

as
s

61
.2

6
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
0.

63
 

$ 
   

   
   

30
.6

3 
Ba

nk
 o

f A
m

er
ic

a 
N

A
04

6-
13

71
5

W
 W

AT
ER

 S
TR

EE
T

N
44

-0
20

37
0

Gr
as

s
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
37

.5
0 

Ge
rt

ru
de

 R
 F

ly
nn

02
9-

13
51

0
W

AL
KE

R 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
22

46
0

Gr
as

s
95

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
47

.5
0 

Ge
rt

ru
de

 R
 F

ly
nn

11
2-

13
51

0
W

AL
KE

R 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
22

46
0

Gr
as

s
95

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
47

.5
0 

Li
et

te
 R

ea
lty

49
8

15
21

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

Av
e

N
44

-0
27

81
0

Tr
as

h
60

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

0.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
30

.0
0 

Sh
irl

ey
 S

to
ne

ro
ck

10
0-

13
71

5
W

ill
ar

d 
St

N
44

-0
31

91
0

Gr
as

s
15

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  7
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

77
.5

0 
Da

w
n 

M
ah

rt
06

8-
13

17
12

W
IL

LI
AM

S 
PL

AC
E

N
44

-0
71

97
5

Gr
as

s
27

5.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

13
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
 1

37
.5

0 
Da

w
n 

M
ah

rt
08

3-
13

17
12

W
IL

LI
AM

S 
PL

AC
E

N
44

-0
71

97
5

Gr
as

s
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  3

4.
00

 
$ 

   
   

   
34

.0
0 

Sh
ar

on
 F

er
re

e
06

1-
13

80
9

W
IL

SO
N

 A
VE

N
U

E
N

44
-0

38
68

0
Gr

as
s

65
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  3
2.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

32
.5

0 



20
13

 N
U

IS
AN

CE
 A

BA
TE

M
EN

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
U

PD
AT

ED
 E

XH
IB

IT
 "A

"
AU

GU
ST

 2
0,

 2
01

3

O
w

ne
r

In
vo

ic
e 

#
Lo

ca
tio

n
Pa

rc
el

 ID
Ty

pe
  T

ot
al

 
Am

ou
nt

  
 D

ue
 D

ec
 

20
13

 
 D

ue
 Ju

ne
 

20
14

 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
Ra

m
on

a 
J

65
6

41
9

Y 
St

N
44

-0
98

56
0

Gr
as

s
52

8.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
4.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

64
.0

0 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
Ra

m
on

a 
J

86
6

41
9

Y 
St

N
44

-0
98

56
0

Gr
as

s
55

2.
50

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

27
6.

25
 

$ 
   

   
 2

76
.2

5 
Ed

w
ar

d 
M

cC
ro

ss
in

 &
 R

am
on

a 
M

o
02

2-
13

41
9

Y 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
98

56
0

Gr
as

s
18

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

  9
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
   

90
.0

0 
Ed

w
ar

d 
M

cC
ro

ss
in

 &
 R

am
on

a 
M

o
07

6-
13

41
9

Y 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
98

56
0

Gr
as

s
53

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
5.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 2

65
.0

0 
Ed

w
ar

d 
M

cC
ro

ss
in

 &
 R

am
on

a 
M

o
12

0-
13

41
9

Y 
ST

RE
ET

N
44

-0
98

56
0

Gr
as

s
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

30
0.

00
 

$ 
   

   
 3

00
.0

0 
Ca

rn
es

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 IV
 L

LC
03

2-
13

33
8

Yo
un

g
N

44
-0

13
38

0
Tr

as
h

18
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  9

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
92

.5
0 

Ca
rn

es
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 IV

 L
LC

08
7-

13
33

8
Yo

un
g

N
44

-0
13

38
0

Gr
as

s
95

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
47

.5
0 

Ja
so

n 
W

ac
kl

er
05

5-
13

43
1

Yo
un

g
N

44
-0

45
68

0
Gr

as
s

11
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  5

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
57

.5
0 

Be
rt

ie
 C

of
fe

e
01

6-
13

43
4

Yo
un

g
N

44
-0

22
42

0
Gr

as
s

15
5.

00
$ 

   
   

$ 
   

   
  7

7.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
77

.5
0 

W
ac

kl
er

 Ja
so

n 
D

66
3

42
9

Yo
un

g 
St

N
44

-0
45

68
0

Gr
as

s
52

3.
10

$ 
   

   
$ 

   
   

26
1.

55
 

$ 
   

   
 2

61
.5

5 
W

ac
kl

er
 Ja

so
n 

D
10

6-
13

43
1

Yo
un

g 
St

N
44

-0
45

68
0

Gr
as

s
85

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
  4

2.
50

 
$ 

   
   

   
42

.5
0 

Be
rt

ie
 C

of
fe

e
07

4-
13

43
4

YO
U

N
G 

ST
RE

ET
N

44
-0

22
42

0
Gr

as
s

95
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

  4
7.

50
 

$ 
   

   
   

47
.5

0 

TO
TA

L
38

,7
74

.9
4

$ 
19

,3
87

.4
7

$
19

,3
87

.4
7

$ 



ORDINANCE NO.  11-13  
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
TO PAY THE COST OF DEMOLITION ASSESSMENTS 
PER TERMS OF MOVING OHIO FORWARD GRANT 
AGREEMENT 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 

the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The assessment of the cost and expense of improving a certain 
lot, as herein set out, by nuisance abatement on said property, as defined under the 
Moving Ohio Forward Program, as reported to this Commission in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto, are hereby adopted and confirmed, and that there be and is hereby levied and 
assessed upon the lot improved by the aforementioned nuisance abatement, the 
amount reported as aforesaid which assessment, together with the description of said 
lot is now on file in the office of the Clerk of this Commission and in the office of the 
Director of Finance and is not in excess of the special benefits to said property, and is 
not in excess of a statutory limitation. 

 
  
SEC. 2: The total assessment against said lot shall be payable in cash or 

at the option of the owner, in one annual installment.  All cash payments of 
assessments and installments shall be made to the Director of Finance.  All 
assessments and installments thereof remained unpaid shall be certified by the Clerk 
of this Commission to the County Auditor, as provided by law, to be by him placed on 
the tax duplicate and collected as other taxes are collected.  Said assessment shall 
include the cost of publishing and serving of any and all notices, ordinances and 
resolutions required. 

 
 

 SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
1st Reading 8-6-2013 
 

     ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 3
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

August 6, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

An Ordinance to Levy Special Assessment to Pay the Cost of Demolition 
Assessments Per Terms of the Moving Ohio Forward Grant Agreement 
(Ordinance #11-13) 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: William Lutz  Development Program Manager 
Department: Community Development 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director;  Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

In 2012 The City of Piqua entered into a grant agreement (Moving Ohio 
Forward) with the Miami County Board of Commissioners for the demolition of 
residential structures.  The terms of this grant were that the City would demolish 
up to ten houses and assess ½ of the demolition costs to the property owner.   
 
To date, under the program, six properties have been demolished, two are under 
contract to be completed by August 30 and two more are currently being studies 
for asbestos contamination.    
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  No budget 
Expenditure $:  No expenditure 
Source of Funds: Moving Ohio Forward Grant 
Narrative:   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Adopt the ordinance which will put one half of the demolition costs on the 
tax duplicate in accordance with the agreement with the Board of County 
Commissioners. 

2. Deny the ordinance and provide further guidance. 
3.  
4.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

Must be completed by December 31, 2013 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Staff would recommend that the ordinance be adopted by the City Commission. 

ATTACHMENTS   

 



Moving Ohio Forward Assessemnts Appendix A Ordinance 11-13

Name Location Lot No Parcel No Type Amount Due 
Dec-13

Nathan Gober 529 W. Water 435 N44-008735 Demolition 11,487.72    11,487.72      
Fred Williams 1411 Edge St 2804-50 N44-035480 Demolition 4,258.22      4,258.22        
Gary Ditmer 507 Gray St 2802-50 N44-035460 Demolition 2,902.72      2,902.72        
Patricia Young 622 First St 4747 S End N44-054230 Demolition 3,712.72      3,712.72        
Ann Wead 114 Cassell St 1459-50 N44-022330 Demolition 4,867.22      4,867.22        
Delmar Crowell 707 McKinley 3103-45 N44-038450 Demolition 5,289.72      5,289.72        

Total 32,518.32    32,518.32      



SEC. 1:  That there be appropriated from the GENERAL FUND (001)

2013 2013 2013 REVISED
ACCOUNT APPROPRIATIONS SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS
Engineering
Personal Services/Administrative Support $348,226 $348,226
Operation and Maintenance $35,074 $1,500 $36,574
Allocated Expenses ($312,081) ($312,081)

TOTAL $71,219 $1,500 $72,719

Income Tax
Personal Services/Administrative Support $185,126 $185,126
Operation and Maintenance $277,329 $1,140 $278,469

TOTAL $462,455 $1,140 $463,595

General Government
Operation and Maintenance $220,658 $12,727 $233,385
Capital Outlay (including labor) $0 $25,499 $25,499
Non Government/Transfers/Refunds $100 $100

TOTAL $220,758 $38,226 $258,984

TOTAL GENERAL FUND $754,432 $40,866 $795,298

SEC. 2: That there be appropriated from the STREET DEPARTMENT FUND (101)

Operation and Maintenance $1,536,735 $8,000 $1,544,735

TOTAL $1,536,735 $8,000 $1,544,735

SEC. 3: That there be appropriated from the STREET INCOME TAX FUND (103)

Operation and Maintenance $1,475,709 $780,907 $2,256,616
Capital Outlay (including labor) $4,608,000 ($1,830,147) $2,777,853

TOTAL $6,083,709 ($1,049,240) $5,034,469

SEC. 5: That there be appropriated from the PARK AND RECREATION FUND (105)

Operation and Maintenance $164,687 $43,612 $208,299
Capital Outlay (including labor) $100,237 $223 $100,460

TOTAL $264,924 $43,835 $308,759

SEC. 6: That there be appropriated from the PUBLIC SAFETY FUND (106)

009 Fire Department
Personal Services/Administrative Support $3,103,332 $287,263 $3,390,595
Operation and Maintenance $457,305 $4,132 $461,437
Capital Outlay (including labor) $281,406 $7,168 $288,574

TOTAL $3,842,043 $298,563 $4,140,606

014 Police Department
Personal Services/Administrative Support $3,538,347 $116,366 $3,654,713
Operation and Maintenance $691,510 $1,000 $692,510
Capital Outlay (including labor) $40,000 $57,400 $97,400
Non-Government/Transfers/Refunds $17,794 $26 $17,820

TOTAL $4,287,651 $174,792 $4,462,443

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY $8,129,694 $473,355 $8,603,049

SEC. 11: That there be appropriated from the CHIP 2010 FUND (112)

Operation and Maintenance $35,000 $287 $35,287

TOTAL $35,000 $287 $35,287

ORDINANCE NO. 12-13
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE 

CITY OF PIQUA, OHIO FOR THE YEAR 2013

BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County
Ohio, the majority of all members elected or appointed thereto concurring

Whereas, Section 5705.38 empowers the municipal legislative authority to pass supplemental appropriations measures as it finds neccesary; and therefore



Ord. No. 12-13 2013 2013 2013 REVISED
Page 2 of 3 APPROPRIATIONS SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS

SEC. 14: That there be appropriated from the C.H.I.P. PROGRAM INCOME
FUND (119)

Personal Services/Administrative Support $0 $4,600 $4,600

TOTAL $0 $4,600 $4,600

SEC. 16: That there be appropriated from the COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT FUND (122)

Operation and Maintenance $19,000 $32,500 $51,500
Capital Outlay (including labor) $76,000 ($32,500) $43,500

TOTAL $95,000 $0 $95,000

SEC. 19: That there be appropriated from the DEMOLITION DEFENSE FUND (126)

Non Government/Transfers/Refunds $45,000 $18,000 $63,000

TOTAL $45,000 $18,000 $63,000

SEC. 21: That there be appropriated from the REVOLVING LOAN FUND (130)

Personal Services/Administrative Support $0 $130 $130
Operation and Maintenance $60,750 ($130) $60,620

TOTAL $60,750 $0 $60,750

SEC. 25: That there be appropriated from the AGRICULTURAL 
REVOLVING LOAN FUND (142)

Personal Services/Administrative Support $0 $580 $580
Operation and Maintenance $24,250 $5,750 $30,000

TOTAL $24,250 $6,330 $30,580

SEC. 26: That there be appropriated from the CORF HOPSITAL DEMOLITION
FUND (144)

Operation and Maintenance $75,000 $323,791 $398,791

TOTAL $75,000 $323,791 $398,791

SEC. 43: That there be appropriated from the WASTEWATER SYSTEM FUND (404)

Operation and Maintenance $1,347,088 $26,370 $1,373,458
Capital Outlay (including labor) $1,277,000 $80,000 $1,357,000

TOTAL $2,624,088 $106,370 $2,730,458

SEC. 47: That there be appropriated from the GOLF COURSE FUND (409)

Non Government/Transfers/Refunds $167,648 $42 $167,690

TOTAL $167,648 $42 $167,690

SEC. 49: That there be appropriated from the STORMWATER UTILITY FUND (411)

Operation and Maintenance $463,822 $10,976 $474,798

TOTAL $463,822 $10,976 $474,798

SEC. 51: That there be appropriated from the UTILITIES BUSINESS OFFICE 
FUND (413)

Personal Services/Administrative Support $512,789 ($8,275) $504,514
Operation and Maintenance $385,548 $8,275 $393,823

TOTAL $898,337 $0 $898,337



Ord. No. 12-13 2013 2013 2013 REVISED
Page 3 of 3 APPROPRIATIONS SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS

SEC. 54: That there be appropriated from the CONSERVANCY  FUND (611)

Operation and Maintenance $28,200 ($2,244) $25,956

TOTAL $28,200 ($2,244) $25,956

SEC. 59: That the sums appropriated are actual expenditures for goods and services or other government functions performed in the calenda
year 2013.  Future commitments representing encumbrances of fund balance or future receipts will be appropriated in the future year when those service
 or goods are rendered to the city.

SEC. 60: That the sums expended from the appropriations and which are proper charges against any .other department or against any person
firm or corporation which are repaid with the period covered by such appropriations shall be considered reappropriated for such original purposes; provided
 that the net total of expenditures under any item of said appropriations shall not exceed the amount of the item

SEC. 61: That the Director of Finance is hereby authorized and directed to draw her warrant upon the City Treasury for the amounts appropriate
in this order when claims are properly presented and approved, the same to be chargeable to the appropriations for the year 2013 when passe
and legally contracted for in conformity by law

SEC. 62: That the Finance Director at the discretion of the City Manager make temporary advances from the General Fund to any Fund to cove
 temporary shortages of cash until revenues or permanent transfers become available to repay that temporary advance.  That these advances shall no
exceed $1,000,000 in the aggregate nor extend past December 31, 2013; except those that are to be reimbursed by federal, state or other gran
programs that were previously approved by this Commission

SEC. 63: That all ordinances, or parts of ordinances, inconsistent with this ordinance be and they are hereby repealed

SEC. 64: That this ordinance is declared an emergency for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health or safety in the City of Piqua
and shall take effect and be in force from and after passage.

LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR

PASSED:

ATTEST:
REBECCA J. COOL
CLERK OF COMMISSION



General Fund (001)

Engineering
Operation and Maintenance 1,500$                 Temporary Services

Income Tax
Operation and Maintenance 1,140$                 New Overhead gate

General Government
Operation and Maintenance 12,727$               Property Taxes - Conservancy
Capital Outlay (including labor) 25,499$               Vehicle - $15,499 and Clinic (grant funded) $10,000

Net Increase to General Fund 40,866$              

Streets Fund (101)
Operation and Maintenance 8,000$                 Tree Removal due to Emerald Ash Borer

Street Income Tax Fund (103)
Operation and Maintenance 780,907$             
Capital Outlay (including labor) (1,830,147)$         

Total Street Income Tax Fund (103) (1,049,240)$        

Park and Recreation Fund (105)
Operation and Maintenance 43,612$               Rehab Tennis Courts/Concert
Capital Outlay (including labor) 223$                    Added cost of Hydroseeder

Total Parks and Recreation (105) 43,835$              

Public Safety Fund (106)

Fire Department 009
Personal Services/Adminsitrative Support 377,263$             SAFR Grant
Personal Services/Adminsitrative Support (90,000)$              Overtime reduction
Operation and Maintenance 4,132$                 FEMA Grant Life Pack Maintenance
Capital Outlay (including labor) (4,132)$                FEMA Grant Life Pack Maintenance
Capital Outlay (including labor) 11,300$               Fiber Project

Police Department 014
Personal Services/Administrative Support 116,366$             Two New Police Officers
Operation and Maintenance 1,000$                 Walmart Vest Donation
Non-Government/Transfers/Refunds 26$                      Refunds
Capital Oulay (including labor) 46,000$               Vehicle
Capital Oulay (including labor) 11,400$               Fiber Project

Total Public Safety Fund (106) 473,355$            

CHIP 2010 Fund (112)
Operation and Maintenance 287$                    Grant Completion

CHIP PROGRAM INCOME Fund (119)
Personal Services/Administrative Support 4,600$                 Add Administrative Support

Community Development Block Grant Fund (122)
Operation and Maintenance 32,500$               Amend grant for road resurfacing
Capital Outlay (including labor) (32,500)$              

Total CDBG Fund (122) -$                         

Demolition Defense Fund (126)
Non Government/Transfers/Refunds 18,000$               Increase in number of fires

Ordinance 12-13 Revised Appropriation Comparison to Original Exhibit A

Cost Realignment for 25-A reconstruction



Revolving Loan Fund (130)
Personal Services/Administrative Support 130$                    Add administrative support
Operation and Maintenance (130)$                   

Total Revolving Loan Fund (130) -$                         

Agricultural Revolving Loan Fund (142)
Personal Serivces/Administrative Support 580$                    Add administrative support
Operation and Maintenance 5,750$                 Increased loan amount available

Total Agricultural Revolving Loan Fund (142) 6,330$                

CORF Hospital Demolition Fund (144)
Operation and Maintenance 323,791$             Project Completion in 2013 due to weather

Wastewater System Fund (404)

Operation and Maintenance 26,370$               Repair Hydrostaic $11,500, Underground Utilities $10,900, 
Underground Utilties Cable Telephone $3,970

Capital Outlay (including labor) 80,000$               Fiber Project

Total Wastewater System Fund (404) 106,370$            

Golf Course Fund (409)
Non Government/Transfers/Refunds 42$                      Refunds

Stormwater Utility Fund (411)
Operation and Maintenance 10,976$               Underground Utilities Allocation

Utility Business Office Fund (413)
Personal Services/Administrative Support (8,275)$                
Operation and Maintenance 8,275$                 

Total Utilty Business Office Fund (413) -$                        

Conservancy Fund (611)
Operation and Maintenance (2,244)$                Decrease due to funding

Overall Total (15,032)$              

Temporary Staffing



General, Parks & Safety Funds Breakdown
Personal Services/Administrative Support 403,629$             
Operation and Maintenance 64,111$               
Non Government/Transfers/Refunds 26$                      
Capital Outlay (including labor) 90,290$               

Total General Fund 558,056$            

Streets 101 & 103 Breakdown
Operation and Maintenance 788,907$             
Capital Outlay (including labor) (1,830,147)$         

Total Streets (1,041,240)$        

Other Funds Breakdown (112, 119, 122, 126, 130, 142, 144, 611)
Personal Services/Administrative Support 5,310$                 
Operation and Maintenance 359,954$             
Non Government/Transfers/Refunds 18,000$               
Capital Outlay (including labor) (32,500)$              

Total Other Funds 350,764$            

Enterprise Breakdown 
(Wastewater, Stormwater, Golf, UBO)

Personal Services/Administrative Support (8,275)$                
Operation and Maintenance 45,621$               
Capital Outlay (including labor) 80,000$               
Non Government/Transfers/Refunds 42$                      

Total Enterprise 117,388$            

Overall Total (15,032)$             

Summary



 
 

(Shou

 

 
AG

 
 

(Incl

 

(Inclu

(In

ST

 

ME

RE
uld match reso

SU

GENDA CLA

APPROVA

BA
ludes descriptio

a

BUD
FINAN

udes project co

nclude Deny /A

PROJE

TAFF RECOM

AT

EETING DAT

EPORT TITL
olution/ordinanc

title

UBMITTED B

ASSIFICATIO

ALS/REVIEW

ACKGROUN
on, background
and justification

DGETING AN
CIAL IMPAC
osts and fundin

sources

OPTION
Approval Option

ECT TIMELIN

MMENDATIO

TTACHMENT

 

 
E 

August 2

E 
ce 
e) 

 

An Emer
for the y

Y 
Name &
Departm

N 
 

Conse

S 
City M
Asst. 
Depar

 
D 
d, 
n) 

 

Every ye
due in pa
early No
expectin
the fisca
appropri
statemen

D 
T 

ng 
s) 

Budgete
Expendi
Source o
Narrativ

 
S 
n) 

 
 

1. App
mak

2. App
mak
bein

E 
 

 

 
N 

 
 

We are r
Ordinanc
Based on
we are re
this Ordi

S  Exhibit A

 

Com
Staf
 
 
 
 

20, 2013 

rgency Ordi
year 2013 

& Title: Cynth
ment: Finance

ent 

Manager 
City Manag
rtment Direc
ear about thi
art to the req

ovember 201
ng to be done
al year, unexp
iation allows
nts.  Please s
d $:  S
ture $:  S

of Funds: V
ve:  
prove Ordina
ke Appropria
prove Ordina
ke Appropria
ng made to t

requesting ap
ce to make A
n the need fo
equesting, as
inance be pa
A 

mmissi
ff Repo

nance to ma

hia Holtzapp
e 
 

Ordinanc

ger/Developm
ctor;  
is time, we re
quirement th
12 before all 
e last year w
pected expen
s us to more 
see “Exhibit 
See “Exhibit
See “Exhibit
Various 

ance No. 12
ations for th
ance No. 12
ations for th
the amounts 

pproval of O
Appropriatio
or the Depar
s in the past,
assed on an e

ion Ag
ort 

ake appropria

ple, Assistan

ce 
 

ment 

equest a sup
hat we presen

project timi
will sometime

nses do occu
accurately r
A” for detai
t A” 
t A” 

-13 acceptin
he City of Piq
-13 acceptin

he City of Piq
requested. 

Ordinance No
ons for the C
rtments to m
, that the thr
emergency b

genda  

ations for th

nt City Mana

Resolution 

Asst. City M
Law Directo
Other:  

pplemental ap
nt the 2013 a
ing and costs
es carryover 
ur and this su
reflect these 
iled explanat

ng the Emerg
qua for the y
ng the Emerg
qua for the y

o. 12-13 acc
City of Piqua
meet grant and
ree reading ru
basis. 

Item

          

he City of Piq

ager, Finance

 
Re

Manager/Fin
or 

ppropriation
annual budge
s are known
r into this yea
upplemental
changes in o
tion of the c

gency Ordin
year 2013 
gency Ordin
year 2013 wi

cepting the E
a for the year
d project com
ule be waive

m # 4

 

qua, Ohio 

e Director 

gular 

nance 

n.  This is 
et to you in 
.  Projects 
ar.  During 
l 
our financial
hanges. 

nance to 

nance to 
ith changes 

Emergency 
r 2013.  
mmitments, 
ed and that 

l 



 
 

                                                ORDINANCE NO. 13-13 
 

  AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 77.01 – TRAFFIC 
  SCHEDULES ADOPTED, SCHEDULE III OF THE PIQUA 
  CODE, RELATING TO ONE-WAY STREETS AND ALLEYS 
                 PERTAINING TO WOOD STREET 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the 
majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1:  Section 77.01 Traffic Schedules Adopted of the Piqua Code, Schedule 
III – One-Way Streets and Alleys is hereby amended to ADD the following under the 
description: 

 
Unlawful except in an easterly direction on Wood Street  
between Covington Avenue and College Street. 

 
 SEC. 2: Section 77.01 Traffic Schedules Adopted of the Piqua Code, Schedule 
III – One Way Streets and Alleys is hereby amended to revise the designation of the roadway; 

 
SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 

earliest period allowed by law. 
 
       

  ___________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 5
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
August 20, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

An ordinance amending Section 77.01 – Traffic Schedules Adopted, Schedule 
III of the Piqua Code relating to one-way streets and alleys pertaining to Wood 
Street. 

 
SUBMITTED BY Name & Title: Amy Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 

Department:  Engineering 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

The City Manager received direction from the City Commission to evaluate the 
possibility of converting Wood Street into a one-way street eastbound between 
Covington Avenue and College Street.   

Subsequently, Work Sessions were held on January 10, 2013 and February 14, 2013 
to discuss the various options for improving this section of the roadway.  Ultimately, 
the City Commission indicated that their preference was to make Wood Street one-
way eastbound between Covington Avenue and College Street.   
 
Based upon that recommendation, a Traffic Study was completed by The Kleingers 
Group which looked at making Wood Street one-way eastbound and the effect that 
the one-way traffic would have on the surrounding streets.  The findings of the 
report were that converting Wood Street to one-way eastbound appears to be 
feasible and that we should also research the possibility of allowing parking on both 
sides of the street between Gordon Street and College Street.   

The Consultant also recommended that the existing island bounded by Covington 
Avenue, Wood Street, and Gordon Street be extended to the south to narrow the 
roadway width and discourage illegal turns from Gordon Street.  In the interim, 
pavement markings should be used to reduce the travel width until such time that the 
curbed island could be constructed.  A detailed pavement marking & signage plan 
will be provided by The Kleingers Group for the City to implement should the City 
Commission pass this ordinance.   

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  $0  

Expenditure $:  There will be minimal expense associated with replacing 
signage/pavement markings.   



Source of Funds: Local (Street Department 101 Fund) 

Narrative  The Sign Shop can make the necessary signage in-house.       
 

OPTIONS 
(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

 

1. Approve the ordinance to amend Section 77.01, Schedule III of the Piqua 
Code relating to one-way streets and alleys pertaining to Wood Street. 

2. Do not approve the ordinance and do not make any changes to Wood 
Street. 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
This work would be completed as soon as possible once the Ordinance is 
adopted. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve the ordinance to allow for the conversion of Wood Street to a one-way 
operation eastbound between Covington Avenue and College Street.    

ATTACHMENTS   

 



RESOLUTION NO. R-112-13 
 
 

                           A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE  
                          ORDER TO NORTH AMERICAN SALT CO. FOR  
                             THE PURCHASE OF ROAD SALT FOR THE  

          STREET DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 WHEREAS, road salt must be purchased to remove snow and ice from City 
streets; and 
 
 WHEREAS, bids were received under the Southwest Ohio Purchasers for 
Government; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after solicitation, bids were opened resulting in the tabulation of 
bids as listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: A purchase order for road salt is hereby authorized to North 
American Salt Co. as the lowest responsible bidder and the City Manager is hereby 
authorized to execute a contract with said bidder pursuant to contract specifications;  
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies funds are available and is 
hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account 
of the City treasury in payment according to contract terms, at the rate of $52.80 per 
ton. 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
      _______________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 6
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
August 20, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO NORTH 
AMERICAN SALT CO. FOR THE PURCHASE OF ROAD SALT FOR 
THE STREET DEPARTMENT  
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Doug Harter, Public Works Director 
Department: Public Works Department 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

 

 
We belong to an organization named Southwest Ohio Purchasers for 
Government (SWOP4G) which bid out the road salt purchase on behalf of 
approximately 95 entities this year.  The City of Piqua has participated in this 
joint bid successfully for many years.  We have found great value in the 
quantity discounts the vendors offer to all of the area communities that 
participate in this bid. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

Budgeted $:  $157,625.00 for the 2013 year 
Expenditure $:  $105,600.00 based on purchasing 2,000 tons, could be more 

or less depending on weather conditions. 
Source of Funds: Street Dept. budget 101-113-855-7529 
 
Narrative:  

 
We estimated our usage at 2,000 tons for the bid, but we are 
not required to purchase all of this if we have a mild winter 
and do not need it.  Our cost per ton is decreasing by 
$10.25, from $63.05 to $52.80. 
 

 
OPTIONS 

 

1. Approve Resolution No. R-112-13 as presented. 
 

2. Approve Resolution No. R-112-13 with changes in the amounts proposed. 
 

3. Deny Resolution No. R-112-13 and provide direction on how you would 
like staff to proceed. 

 
 PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
Salt can be purchased off this contract from 8/1/13 through 7/31/14. 
 



 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
 

 
We recommend approval of this Resolution as proposed.  By participating in 
this joint bid through SWOP4G, we get the discounts of a large buying group, 
but do not have the expense of advertising and working on the bid documents 
themselves. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS  

 
Exhibit “A” – shows the bid tabulation as provided by SWOP4G.  

 













RESOLUTION NO.  R-113-13 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO 
L.J. DEWEESE CO., INC. FOR THE FOUNTAIN  
      PARK BRIDGE REHAB PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, on January 15, 2013, this Commission passed Resolution No. 

R-6-13 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to law, for 
the Fountain Park Bridge Rehab Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the 
tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: A contract is hereby approved with L.J. DeWeese Co., Inc. as the 
lowest, responsible bidder for the Fountain Park Bridge Rehab Project and the City 
Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said bidder pursuant to contract 
specifications.  
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her warrants 
from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment according to 
contract terms, not exceeding a total of $61,000. 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCY FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 7
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
August 20, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution awarding a contract to L.J. DeWeese Co., Inc. for the Fountain 
Park Bridge Rehab Project.   

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Bob Graeser, Project Manager 
Department:  Engineering 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION Consent Ordinance Resolution Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
On August 8, 2013, three bids were received for the Fountain Park Bridge 
Rehab Project (see attached Exhibit “A”).  The project will consist of the raising 
of the existing Fountain Park pedestrian bridge superstructure to make the 
bridge handicap accessible, will include the construction of a new access ramp 
on the west side of the canal, and will also include the repainting of the entire 
bridge after the bridge construction is complete.  

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $65,000  – Parks (105 Fund) 

Expenditure $:  $61,000 (includes contingency) 

Source of Funds: The City received a $65,000 grant from the Neils & Ruth 
Lundgard Foundation.   

Narrative:  This resolution includes a 10% contingency for items of 
work which may be required which are not included in 
the original plans and specifications.  The engineer’s 
estimate was $59,000. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the resolution and complete the Fountain Park Bridge Rehab 
Project. 

2. Do not approve the resolution, return the grant money, and do not complete 
the bridge rehab project. 

3.  

PROJECT TIMELINE The project completion date is November 15, 2013.       

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Approve the resolution to allow for the completion of the Fountain Park Bridge 
Rehab Project. 

ATTACHMENTS  Bid Tabulation (Exhibit “A”) 

 



EX
H

IB
IT

 "
A

"

 1
3-

07
 F

ou
nt

ai
n 

Pa
rk

 B
rid

ge
 R

eh
ab

B
id

 T
ab

B
id

 d
at

e:
 A

ug
us

t 8
, 2

01
3 

(1
0:

00
 a

.m
.)

Ite
m

Q
ua

nt
ity

Pr
ic

e
Ex

te
ns

io
n

Pr
ic

e
Ex

te
ns

io
n

Pr
ic

e
Ex

te
ns

io
n

20
1 

- C
LE

A
R

IN
G

 A
N

D
 G

R
U

B
B

IN
G

 - 
LU

M
P

1.
00

   
   

  
3,

51
1.

00
$ 

   
   

   
3,

51
1.

00
$ 

   
   

   
1,

33
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
1,

33
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
1,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
1,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
20

1 
- T

R
E

E
 R

E
M

O
V

A
L 

- E
A

C
H

4.
00

   
   

  
40

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

60
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
32

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

28
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
2,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
8,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
20

2 
- S

TE
P

S
 R

E
M

O
V

E
D

 - 
LU

M
P

1.
00

   
   

  
1,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
1,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
86

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
86

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
1,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
20

2 
- P

O
R

TI
O

N
S 

O
F 

ST
R

U
C

TU
R

E 
R

E
M

O
V

E
D

 - 
LU

M
P

1.
00

   
   

  
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
96

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
96

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
7,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
7,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
30

4 
- A

G
G

R
E

G
A

TE
 B

A
S

E
 - 

C
U

. Y
D

.
6.

00
   

   
  

75
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
45

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
27

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

62
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
51

0 
- D

O
W

E
L 

H
O

LE
S

 W
IT

H
 N

O
N

S
H

R
IN

K
, N

O
N

M
E

TA
LL

IC
 G

R
O

U
T 

- E
A

C
H

54
.0

0
   

   
10

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

12
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
64

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
30

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
62

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

51
1 

- C
LA

SS
 C

 C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
, B

R
ID

G
E

 S
U

BS
TR

U
C

TU
R

E 
- C

U
. Y

D
.

6.
00

   
   

  
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
15

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

2,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

12
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
2,

65
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
15

,9
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

51
2 

- S
EA

LI
N

G
 O

F 
C

O
N

C
R

ET
E 

SU
R

FA
C

ES
 - 

S
Q

. Y
D

.
50

.0
0

   
   

15
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
75

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
2.

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

12
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
51

6 
- 1

/2
" P

R
E

FO
R

M
E

D
 E

XP
A

N
S

IO
N

 J
O

IN
T 

FI
LL

E
R

 - 
S

Q
. F

T.
30

.0
0

   
   

2.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
51

6 
- 1

" E
LA

S
TO

M
E

R
IC

 B
E

A
R

IN
G

 P
A

D
 (4

"X
4"

) -
 E

A
C

H
8.

00
   

   
  

50
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
40

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
10

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
80

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
15

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
51

6 
- J

A
C

KI
N

G
 A

N
D

 T
EM

PO
R

AR
Y 

SU
PP

O
R

T 
O

F 
SU

PE
R

S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E 
- L

U
M

P
1.

00
   

   
  

16
,5

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
16

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

8,
51

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

8,
51

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

17
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
17

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

53
0 

- S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E,
 M

IS
C

.: 
R

EP
LA

C
E 

TI
M

BE
R

 S
U

PE
R

ST
R

U
C

TU
R

E
, I

N
 K

IN
D

 - 
LU

M
P

1.
00

   
   

  
4,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
4,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
7,

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
7,

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
3,

41
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
3,

41
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
60

7 
- S

P
LI

T 
R

A
IL

 F
E

N
C

E
 - 

FE
E

T
22

.0
0

   
   

30
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
66

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
12

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

26
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

15
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

3,
30

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

60
8 

- W
A

LK
S

, C
U

R
B 

R
AM

PS
, A

N
D

 S
TE

PS
 - 

SQ
. F

T.
43

3.
00

   
 

12
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
5,

19
6.

00
$ 

   
   

   
15

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

6,
49

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

15
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
6,

49
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
61

0 
- C

E
LL

U
LA

R
 R

E
TA

IN
IN

G
 W

A
LL

 - 
S

Q
. F

T.
12

0.
00

   
 

30
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
3,

60
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
10

4.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
12

,4
80

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

10
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

12
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
65

9 
- S

E
E

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 M
U

LC
H

IN
G

 - 
S

Q
. Y

D
.

16
7.

00
   

 
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

33
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

12
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
4.

00
$ 

   
   

   
1.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
0.

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

67
0 

- E
R

O
S

IO
N

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 - 
S

Q
. Y

D
.

27
.0

0
   

   
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

54
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

27
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

30
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
81

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
17

 It
em

s
To

ta
ls

55
,1

55
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
56

,8
91

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

81
,5

25
.5

0
$ 

   
   

 

L.
J.

 D
eW

ee
se

 C
o.

, I
nc

.
A

rc
on

 B
ui

ld
er

s,
 L

td
.

Th
e 

R
ig

ht
er

 C
o.

, I
nc

.

Pr
op

os
al

 P
ag

e 
- I

te
m

 L
is

t 



RESOLUTION NO. R-114-13 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE AGREEMENT WITH  
THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR  
          THE US 36 BEAUTIFICATION PROJECT  

 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. R-108-13 passed on July 16, 2013, this 

Commission enacted legislation proposing cooperation with the Director of 
Transportation for the US 36 Beautification Project, requiring the City to pay for 100% of the 
project costs past the MVRPC funding of $288,945; and 

 
 WHEREAS, at this time, the bids have been received for the US 36 
Beautification Project and the apparent low bidder is Double Jay Construction Inc., 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, based upon the bid received, an increase in the Purchase Order 
to ODOT is necessary for ODOT to be able to award the construction project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: Resolution No. R-108-13, a Resolution authorizing a purchase 
order to the State of Ohio for the US 36 Beautification Project in the amount of 
$352,500, be increased by $166,000 for a final amount of $518,500 is hereby 
approved. 

 
SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that the funds are available and 

is hereby authorized to draw her warrant on the appropriate account of the City 
treasury in payment according to this Resolution. 

  
 SEC.3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 



 

Item #8 
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE August 20, 2013 
 

REPORT TITLE 
(Should match resolution/ordinance 

title) 

Resolution amending the agreement with the Ohio Department of 
Transportation for the US 36 Beautification Project 

 
SUBMITTED BY Name & Title: Amy Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 

Department:  Engineering 
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

On July 16, 2013, City Commission passed Resolution No. R- 108-13 to enter 
into an agreement with the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) for the 
U.S. 36 Beautification Project.  The agreement was for an amount not to 
exceed $352,500.  Since that time, the project bids came in and were higher 
than ODOT Centrals Office’s estimate.  Based upon the bid amounts, the City 
will need to put an additional $166,000 into the escrow account. This still 
incorporates the additional 10% contingency included in the first escrow 
agreement that would allow for changes that could possibly arise as the 
construction evolves. 

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  $540,000 (103 Fund), $100,000 (Stormwater), Remainder 
from Electric 

Expenditure $:  $518,500 (includes a contingency and 10% Construction 
Engineering costs) – Local Share 

Source of Funds: Local (103 Fund, Stormwater & Electric) and Federal 
Highway  

Narrative  The apparent low bidder came in at $704,608.45 plus 
$70,460.85 in ODOT Construction Engineering costs.    
The City has received funding from the Federal Highway 
Administration through the Miami Valley Regional 
Planning Commission for $288,945.   
 
The estimate that the City Departments used for the 2013 
Budget was considerably higher than what ODOT used to 
set up the escrow account, therefore, even though the bids 
came in higher than ODOT’s bid estimate, the City was 
anticipating that the bids would come in closer to what 



they actually did, therefore, we have the necessary funds 
in place to cover the additional escrow amount.  

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

1. Approve the resolution to increase the purchase order to ODOT.   

2. Deny the resolution, return the money, and do not proceed with the project. 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE The project is scheduled to be awarded to Double Jay Construction with 
construction to begin the first of September.  Pending any weather delays, the 
project is anticipated to be completed by the end of the year.     

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approval of the resolution to increase the purchase order to ODOT to allow for 
the US 36 Beautification Project to proceed.    

ATTACHMENTS  Original Legislation (Resolution No. R-108-13), ODOT email regarding cost 
increase. 

 










